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An Emergency Preparedness Survey was 

conducted by the Indiana Department of Health in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.73.

Survey Date:  07/24/23

Facility Number: 012565

Provider Number: 155791

AIM Number:  201021970

At this Emergency Preparedness survey, Blair 

Ridge Health Campus was found in compliance 

with Emergency Preparedness Requirements for 

Medicare and Medicaid Participating Providers 

and Suppliers, 42 CFR 483.73. The facility has a 

capacity of 55 and had a census of 50 at the time 

of this survey.

Quality Review completed on 07/26/23

E 0000 E0000

 

 The preparation of execution of 

this

 plan of correction does not 

constitute 

 an admission of agreement of the 

 provider of the truth of the facts

 alleged or conclusions set forth in 

the 

 Statement of Deficiencies. The 

Plan of 

 Correction is prepared and 

executed 

 solely because it is required by 

the 

 position of Federal and State 

Law. The 

 Plan of Correction is submitted in 

order 

 to respond to the allegation of 

 noncompliance cited during the 

Life 

 Safety Code Recertification and 
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State

 Licensure Survey on July 24, 

2023.   

  

 The provider respectfully 

requests

 a desk review paper 

compliance to 

 be considered in establishing 

that 

 the provider is in substantial 

 compliance.

 K 0000

 

Bldg. 01

A Life Safety Code Recertification and State 

Licensure Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

Department of Health in accordance with 42 CFR 

483.90(a).

Survey Date:  07/24/2023

Facility Number:  012565

Provider Number: 155791

AIM Number: 201021970

At this Life Safety Code survey, Blair Ridge 

Health Campus was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 483.90(a), 

K 0000 E0000

 

 The preparation of execution of 

this

 plan of correction does not 

constitute 

 an admission of agreement of the 

 provider of the truth of the facts

 alleged or conclusions set forth in 

the 
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Life Safety from Fire and the 2012 edition of the 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 101, 

Life Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 19, Existing 

Health Care Occupancies and 410 IAC 16.2.

This one story facility was determined to be of 

Type V111 construction and was fully sprinklered.  

The facility has a fire alarm system with smoke 

detection in the corridors, areas open to the 

corridors and in the resident sleeping rooms. The 

facility has a capacity of 55 and had a census of 

50 at the time of this survey.

All areas where the residents have customary 

access were sprinklered.  All areas providing 

facility services were sprinklered.

Quality Review completed on 07/26/23

 Statement of Deficiencies. The 

Plan of 

 Correction is prepared and 

executed 

 solely because it is required by 

the 

 position of Federal and State 

Law. The 

 Plan of Correction is submitted in 

order 

 to respond to the allegation of 

 noncompliance cited during the 

Life 

 Safety Code Recertification and 

State

 Licensure Survey on July 24, 

2023.   

  

 The provider respectfully 

requests

 a desk review paper 

compliance to 

 be considered in establishing 

that 

 the provider is in substantial 
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 compliance.

NFPA 101 

Cooking Facilities 

Cooking Facilities

Cooking equipment is protected in 

accordance with NFPA 96, Standard for 

Ventilation Control and Fire Protection of 

Commercial Cooking Operations, unless: 

* residential cooking equipment (i.e., small 

appliances such as microwaves, hot plates, 

toasters) are used for food warming or limited 

cooking in accordance with 18.3.2.5.2, 

19.3.2.5.2

* cooking facilities open to the corridor in 

smoke compartments with 30 or fewer 

patients comply with the conditions under 

18.3.2.5.3, 19.3.2.5.3, or

* cooking facilities in smoke compartments 

with 30 or fewer patients comply with 

conditions under 18.3.2.5.4, 19.3.2.5.4.

Cooking facilities protected according to 

NFPA 96 per 9.2.3 are not required to be 

enclosed as hazardous areas, but shall not 

be open to the corridor. 

18.3.2.5.1 through 18.3.2.5.4, 19.3.2.5.1 

through 19.3.2.5.5, 9.2.3, TIA 12-2

K 0324

SS=E

Bldg. 01

Based on record review and interview; the facility 

failed to ensure 1 of 1 kitchen fire suppression 

system was inspected semiannually. NFPA 96, 

2011 Edition, Standard for Ventilation Control and 

Fire Protection of Commercial Cooking 

Operations, Section 11.2.1 states Maintenance of 

the fire-extinguishing systems and listed exhaust 

hoods containing a constant or fire-activated 

water system that is listed to extinguish a fire in 

the grease removal devices. Hood exhaust 

plenums, and the exhaust ducts shall be made by 

K 0324 K324- Cooking Facilities

 

 1.     The Director of Plant 

Operations

 (DPO) or the designee has 

contacted

  Koorsen Fire & Security has 

08/11/2023  12:00:00AM
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properly trained, qualified, and certified person(s) 

acceptable to the authority having jurisdiction at 

lease every six months. This deficient practice 

could affect staff in the kitchen and 25 residents in 

the dining room. 

Findings include:

Based on records review with the Director of Plant 

Operations (DPO) on 07/24/23 at 11:50 a.m., the 

only documentation of semi-annual kitchen fire 

suppression system inspection available for 

review was dated 04/13/23. An inspection six 

months before 04/13/23 was not conducted. Based 

on interview at the time of record review, the DPO 

stated the semi-annual kitchen fire suppression 

system inspection six months before 04/13/23 was 

not done.

This finding was reviewed with the DPO at the exit 

conference. 

3.1-19(b)

 reviewed and approved the 

schedule 

 for a semi-annual kitchen fire 

 suppression system inspection.

  

 2.     All residents have the 

potential to be

 affected. The DPO was educated 

by the 

 Facilities Management Support 

 on NFPA 96, 2011 Edition, 

Standard 

 for Ventilation Control and Fire 

 Protection of Commercial 

Cooking

 Operations, Section 11.2.1

  

 3.     The DPO or designee will 

review

 TELS Building Management 

Platform

 1x per month x 6 months verifying 

 that the semi-annual inspection is 

 scheduled.
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 4.     As a quality measure, the 

DPO or

 the designee will review any 

findings

 and corrective actions at least 

 quarterly and ongoing until the 

campus

 achieves one hundred percent 

 compliance in the campus 

Quality

 Assurance Performance 

Improvement

 meetings. The plan will be 

reviewed 

 and updated as warranted.

  

 5.     This plan of correction 

constitutes our

 credible allegation of compliance 

with

 all regulatory requirements. Our 

date

 of compliance is August 11th, 

2023.
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NFPA 101 

Building Services - Other 

Building Services - Other

List in the REMARKS section any LSC 

Section 18.5 and 19.5 Building Services 

requirements that are not addressed by the 

provided K-tags, but are deficient. This 

information, along with the applicable Life 

Safety Code or NFPA standard citation, 

should be included on Form CMS-2567.

K 0500

SS=E

Bldg. 01

Based on observation and interview, the facility 

failed to ensure 2 of 2 fuel fired water heaters had 

current inspection certificates to ensure the water 

heaters were in safe operating condition.  NFPA 

101, Section 19.1.1.3.1 requires all health facilities 

to be designed constructed, maintained and 

operated to minimize the possibility of a fire 

emergency requiring the evacuation of occupants.  

This deficient practice could affect 20 residents in 

the mechanical room area.

Findings include:

Based on observation during a tour of the facility 

with the Director of Plant Operations (DPO) on 

07/24/23 at 02:30 p.m., the two boilers in the 

mechanical room did not have current 

documentation to show that the boilers were 

inspected. There were inspection certificates with 

an expiration date of 01/10/21 available for review. 

Based on interview at the time of the observation, 

the DPO stated the inspection for the boilers was 

completed recently but they still need to pay for 

the permits. 

K 0500 K500-Building Services-Other

 

 1.     The DPO has received the 

updated

 inspection certificates for 2 of the 

2

 fuel-fired boilers.

  

 2.     All residents have the 

potential to

 be affected. The DPO was 

educated

 by the Facilities Management 

Support

 on NFPA 101, Section 19.1.1.3.1

 requires all health facilities to be 

08/11/2023  12:00:00AM
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This finding was reviewed with the DPO at the exit 

conference.

3.1-19(b)

 designed, constructed, 

maintained, and

 operated to minimize the 

possibility of

 a fire emergency requiring the 

evacuation

 of occupants.

  

 3.     The DPO will review TELS 

Building 

 Management Platform 1 x per 

month x 6

 months verifying that the boiler 

inspection

 is scheduled timely, ensuring 

completion.

  

 4.     As a quality measure, the 

DPO or

 the designee will review any 

findings

 and corrective actions at least 

 quarterly and ongoing until the 

campus

 achieves one hundred percent 
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 compliance in the campus 

Quality

 Assurance Performance 

Improvement

 meetings. The plan will be 

reviewed 

 and updated as warranted.

  

 5.     This plan of correction 

constitutes our

 credible allegation of compliance 

with

 all regulatory requirements. Our 

date

 of compliance is August 11th, 

2023.

NFPA 101 

Electrical Equipment - Power Cords and 

Extens 

Electrical Equipment - Power Cords and 

Extension Cords

Power strips in a patient care vicinity are only 

used for components of movable 

patient-care-related electrical equipment 

(PCREE) assembles that have been 

assembled by qualified personnel and meet 

the conditions of 10.2.3.6.  Power strips in 

the patient care vicinity may not be used for 

K 0920

SS=D

Bldg. 01
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non-PCREE (e.g., personal electronics), 

except in long-term care resident rooms that 

do not use PCREE. Power strips for PCREE 

meet UL 1363A or UL 60601-1.  Power strips 

for non-PCREE in the patient care rooms 

(outside of vicinity) meet UL 1363.  In 

non-patient care rooms, power strips meet 

other UL standards.  All power strips are 

used with general precautions.  Extension 

cords are not used as a substitute for fixed 

wiring of a structure.  Extension cords used 

temporarily are removed immediately upon 

completion of the purpose for which it was 

installed and meets the conditions of 10.2.4.

10.2.3.6 (NFPA 99), 10.2.4 (NFPA 99), 400-8 

(NFPA 70), 590.3(D) (NFPA 70), TIA 12-5

Based on observation and interview, the facility 

failed to ensure 1 of 1 power strip in the Resident 

room #406 meets UL 1363.  This deficient practice 

could affect up to 2 residents.  

Findings include:

Based on observation with the Director of Plant 

Operations (DPO) on 07/24/23 at 02:20 p.m., in 

Resident room #406 there was a power strip in use 

providing power to the television that did not 

meet UL-1363. Based on interview at the time of 

observation, the DPO agreed a power strip was in 

use in Resident room #406 and did not meet 

UL-1363. The DPO said he thought this type of 

power strip was allowed outside of resident care 

area but removed it at the time of discovery.

This finding was reviewed with the DPO during 

the exit conference. 

3.1-19(b)

K 0920 K920 -Electrical 

Equipment-Power Cords

            Extension Cords

 

1.     The DPO removed the power 

strip

immediately in resident's room 

406 as

it does not meet UL-1363.

 

2.     All residents have the 

potential to be

affected. The DPO has been 

educated

by the Facilities Management 

Support

on NFPA 101, NFPA 99 10.2.3.6

Power strips in the patient area 

care

vicinity may not be used for non-

PCREE, except in long-term care

resident rooms that do not use

PCREE. Power strips for PCREE

meet UL 1363A or6060-1.

08/11/2023  12:00:00AM
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3.     The DPO will audit the 

resident

rooms 1 x per week x 4 weeks,

followed by 1 x per month x 3

months.

 

4.     As a quality measure, the 

DPO or

 the designee will review any 

findings

 and corrective actions at least 

 quarterly and ongoing until the 

campus

 achieves one hundred percent 

 compliance in the campus 

Quality

 Assurance Performance 

Improvement

 meetings. The plan will be 

reviewed 

 and updated as warranted.

  

 5.     This plan of correction 

constitutes our

 credible allegation of compliance 

with

 all regulatory requirements. Our 
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date

 of compliance is August 11th, 

2023.
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